
Lead Member for Finance and Support Services 
Briefing 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Lead Member for Finance and Support 
Services Briefing to be held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.

Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Thursday, 19 March 2020

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Decision Items (Part 1 - Open to the Public): 

3a Write-off of Irrecoverable Debt - Housing Benefit Overpayments. (Pages 1 - 4)

3b New Housing Proposals: Capital Programme Virement. (Pages 5 - 8)

4  Exclusion of the Public. 

5  Decision Items (Part 2 - Closed to the Public): No items. 

6  Any other business. 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 – Open to the Public  

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR – SERVICE REFORM

TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR FINANCE & SUPPORT SERVICES
ON 

19 March 2020

       TITLE: Write Off of Irrecoverable Debt – Housing Benefit Overpayments

RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. The Lead Member is requested to approve the write-off of the irrecoverable 
debt mentioned in the report

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

The report provides details of the proposals for the write-off of irrecoverable debt of 
the following amount: -

Housing Benefit Overpayments £ 148,645.31

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Write off strategy
Details of accounts to be written-off (not available to the public)

KEY DECISION: The write-off of irrecoverable debts is provided for in the forward 
plan
 

DETAILS: See report attached

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: Performance Management

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



2

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: n/a

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 
The write-off of irrecoverable debt is an essential part of the administration of
Housing Benefit overpayment accounts.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by - n/a

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: The finance team have confirmed the bad 
debt provisions

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by - n/a

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by - n/a 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: n/a

CONTACT OFFICER: Penny Higgins – Service Manager

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 
The write-off of irrecoverable debts may relate to properties in any ward.

Page 2



3

Housing Benefit Overpayment Write-off Arrangements

1. Background

1.1 The team continues to make progress regarding the collection of outstanding 
debts. There are however, debts that are uncollectible because of a variety of 
reasons and these debts need to be written off to maintain the efficient 
maintenance off the accounts.

2.  Write-off and Write-on action required

2.1 Members have previously approved the current write off strategy which sets out 
the circumstances where the debt is likely to be deemed irrecoverable. Such 
circumstances include categories like: Absconders, Bankruptcy and Debt Relief 
Orders (DRO).

Table 1 shows a summary of the proposed amounts for write-off under the 
appropriate categories for the period from 01 September 2019 to 29 February 2020. 

2.2. Details of each individual overpayment to be written off can also be supplied if 
required.

2.3 The write-off of these debts has been provided for in terms of bad debt provision.

3. Recommendation

The Lead Member is requested to approve the write-off of irrecoverable Housing 
Benefit Overpayment debts of £148,645.31          

Housing Benefit Overpayments Write off 
Reason

Value Number

Appeals Team £14,004.32 10
Bankrupt £17,072.65 8
Debt Relief Order £13,784.72 10
Deceased £17,524.52 16
Discretionary £342.31 1
Absconded, forwarding address unknown £18,994.65 1
LA Error ( Irrecoverable ) £42,870.38 2
Other £646.20 1
Recovery procedures exhausted, not suitable for 
legal

£0.00 0

Uneconomic £22,081.89 27
Uneconomic, Under £40.00 £1323.67 70
Total £148,645.31 146

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Part 1 – Open to the public

REPORT OF

The Strategic Director for Place

To Lead Member for Finance and Support Services
On 

19th March 2020

 
TITLE:   New Housing Proposals: Capital Programme Virement.

RECOMMENDATION: 

Lead Member approves the virement of £0.5m from the 2019/20 and 2020/21 Place 
Capital programme to support work on the Council’s new build housing proposals.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Council is working up proposals to deliver 300 new build housing units across the 
City. £0.5m of Funding is required to assist in the development of a detailed business 
case for these proposals

Capital resource of £0.5 m has been identified from within the current and 20/21 
property repairs and maintenance allocations.  As a result, approval is sought to vire 
this value of capital resource to Housing.  The vired resource will allow the business 
case work for the new housing proposals to be concluded and allow the City Mayor to 
make a decision whether to proceed with the delivery of the new units.    

The virement of the monies will assist in the early delivery of the proposed units – 
subject to the approval of the business case.  

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: N/A

KEY DECISION:  NO  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3b



DETAILS: 

1. Background

The Place capital programme is subject to robust monitoring and reporting processes 
to ensure effective and timely investment of resource associated with services under 
the Directorate.  

This process also ensures Place DMT has visibility on any opportunities to maximise 
investment or the ability to reallocate monies to other priorities as required, such as in 
this case. 

 
2. Proposed virement

Given the priority need in the case of new build housing and the lack of existing monies 
in the capital programme, capital resource of £0.5m has been identified from within 
the Place Directorate’s Property repairs and maintenance budget across the 2019/20 
and 2020/21 capital budget allocations that can be vired to assist. This budget is 
assigned for the repair and maintenance works to the Councils Property and land 
portfolio. 

The virement of the monies will require careful management of the remaining monies 
allocated for property repairs and maintenance but it is considered that this is 
deliverable without significant impact due in part to some slippage in the programme.

After review and consideration of maximising benefit it was agreed this resource be 
vired across to Housing to accelerate the completion of the business case for the 
delivery of the new housing units. The business case is expected to be completed in 
June 2020

   

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

The issue of Affordable Housing is a key Council priority and work to deliver such new 
housing will be assist with a number of associated council priorities

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

Impact assessment and implications will be undertaken as part of the business case 
work for the new housing  

Page 6



ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  

Low:  Any delay in agreeing the virement will reduce the development of the Council 
new build Housing business case. 
Low: If the virement is not agreed, an alternative source of funding will be required if 
the required works are to proceed. 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   

2019/20 and 2020/21 Place capital programme (Repairs and Maintenance)

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, tel. 219 6323

As set out in the Council’s Constitution, each directorate is allocated a budget amount 
as their share of the annual revenue budget approved by Council, and capital 
virements (movement of budgets between approved capital schemes) are permitted 
subject to the approvals being made by authorised persons as set out in section 7.4 
of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules.  

For a virement of the amount requested, it would appear that section 7.4 (g) applies 
and the approval of lead member for financial and support services in consultation with 
the section 151 officer is required. Section 7.4 reads as follows:

“7.4 The person set out below shall be entitled to vire across budget heads or budget 
amounts as follows:

a) a Chief Officer may vire between budget heads under their control and within their 
directorates £150,000 in any financial year.

b) the Member(s) of the Cabinet for a relevant service area(s) may, with the approval 
of the relevant Lead Member, vire between budget heads within their control sums of 
£150,000 and over, up to £350,000 in any financial year.

c) the elected City Mayor may vire sums up to £100,000,000 between the budget 
amounts of different directorates in any financial year.

d) the Assistant Director Finance shall be responsible for authorising all virements from 
the central inflation and contingency provision to other service budgets. 

e) any such virement must be notified to the Assistant Director Finance and virements 
of above £150,000 must be reported for information to the next meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Board.

f) any virement above £ 100,000,000 will require the approval of full Council.

g) Virements within the capital programme of up to £2,000,000 are subject to the 
approval of the lead member for financial and support services in consultation 
with the S151 Officer.

Page 7



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Alex Archer, Finance Manager 778 0498

The £0.5m identified in this report is part of the 2019/20 capital programme as 
approved in February 2019. There are no financial implications relating to the 
virement within the Place directorate. 

If the budget is not vired from Property, additional borrowing would be required in 
order to finance the business case for the new housing proposals.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244

Procurement have been working with  Housing, Property and Legal  staff to ensure 
that the correct procurement process is undertaken ensuring compliance with 
contractual standing orders in relation to how the £0.5m will be spent.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

N/A. 

CONTACT OFFICER:   Peter Openshaw, Assistant Director Place 793 3050.                       

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): ALL

Page 8


	Agenda
	3a Write-off of Irrecoverable Debt - Housing Benefit Overpayments.
	3b New Housing Proposals: Capital Programme Virement.

